Tax Parcel Nos.: 5-33 12.00 76.05

Prepared by & Return to: Heidi J. A. Gilmore, Esquire Baird Mandalas Brockstedt LLC 1413 Savannah Road, Suite 1 Lewes, DE 19958

BYLAWS FOR SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I Organization

The name of the organization is **SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC.**, a Delaware corporation (the "Association"). The Association shall have a seal.

The Association may change its name at its pleasure by a majority vote of the membership of the Association.

ARTICLE II Purpose

Section 2.1. Purpose. The purpose of this organization shall be to fulfill the obligations of the Association as established by and to enforce the various restrictions set forth in the Condominium Declaration SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM. The Association shall have the responsibility of administering the Project infrastructure of the residential subdivision known as "SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM," establishing the means and methods of collecting the contributions to the common expenses of the Association, arranging for the management of the condominium (except for the Master Association Property as defined in the Declaration), and performing all of the other acts that may be required to be performed by the Association pursuant to the provisions of Title 8 of the General Corporation Law of Delaware, the Delaware Uniform Common Interest Ownership Act, 25 Del.C. § 81-101, et seq., and by the Management Association as established in the Declaration for SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM dated March 9th, 2018 and recorded in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, in and for Sussex County, at Georgetown, Delaware, in Deed Book _____, Page ____, et seq., as it may be amended from time to time (the "Declaration").

ARTICLE III Membership

Section 3.1. Membership. Every person or entity who is an Owner of a Unit in SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM shall be a member of the Association and shall enjoy all of the benefits of such membership. Membership shall be appurtenant to, and may not be

separated from, ownership of a Unit. Conveyance of a Unit shall, without the need specifically to provide therein, terminate membership of the grantor in the Association with respect to the Unit conveyed; and, by accepting the conveyance, the grantee shall be deemed to accept membership in the Association.

ARTICLE IV Meetings

Section 4.1. Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of the Association shall be held within one (1) year of the formation of the Association and notice of the same shall be given at least ten (10) but not more than sixty (60) days in advance of such meeting. The notice of the meeting shall state the date, time, and place of the meeting and the items on the agenda for the meeting, all in accordance with § 81-308 of the Delaware Uniform Common Interest Ownership Act ("DUCIOA"), as amended. Thereafter, the annual meetings of the Association shall be held as determined by the Board of Directors ("Board") in accordance with the same notice requirements. Except as provided otherwise in these Bylaws, at such annual meetings the Board shall be elected by ballot of the Owners in accordance with the requirements set forth in Article VI of these Bylaws and the annual budget shall be presented in accordance with § 81-324 of DUCIOA, as amended. The Association Owners may transact such other business at such meetings as may properly come before them. Additional regular or special meetings of the total membership, in addition to the annual meeting, may be held as deemed necessary by the President and Board of Directors of the Association.

<u>Section 4.2. Place of Meetings</u>. Meetings of the Association shall be held at the principal office of the Association or at such other suitable place convenient to the Owners as may be designated by the Board.

Section 4.3 Special Meetings. It shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting of the Association if so directed by resolution of a majority of the Board or upon a petition signed and presented to the Secretary by Owners owning not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the then existing Units in the Development; provided, however, that no special meeting shall be called prior to the first annual meeting following the incorporation of the Association except by resolution of the Board. The notice of any special meeting shall state the time and place of such meeting and the purpose thereof. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice.

Section 4.4. Notice of Meetings and Waiver. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to mail or email a notice with the agenda of each annual or special meeting of the Owners, at least ten (10) but not more than sixty (60) days prior to such meeting, to each Owner of record, by any means described in §81-127 of DUCIOA or sent prepaid by United States mail to any mailing address designated in writing by such Owner. The notice of any meeting must state the time and place of the meeting and the items on the agenda, or must state the website address where the agenda is located, including: (a) a statement of the general nature of any proposed amendment to the Declaration or Bylaws; (b) a statement that in the absence of objection from any Owner present at the meeting, the President may add items to the agenda; (c) any budget changes; and (d) any proposal to remove an officer or member of the Board. The agenda may be posted on the website of the Association, in lieu of being included in the notice, provided that the Association

shall, by any means described in § 81-127 of DUCIOA, furnish to any Owner who so requests a copy of the agenda prior to the meeting. Regardless of the agenda, Owners shall be given a reasonable opportunity at any meeting to offer comments to the Board regarding any matter affecting the Association. If the Association does not notify Owners of a special meeting within thirty (30) days after the requisite number or percentage of the Board or Owners, as applicable, requested the Secretary to do so, the requesting Board members or Owners, as applicable, may directly notify all the Owners of that meeting. Only matters described in the meeting notice required by this Section may be considered at a special meeting.

Any Owner may, at any time, waive notice of any meeting of the Owners, in writing, and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by an Owner at any meeting of the Association shall constitute a waiver of notice by him/her of the time and place of, and agenda items for such meeting.

Section 4.5. Adjournment of Meetings. If any meeting of the Association cannot be held because a quorum is not present, a majority of the Owners who are present at such meeting, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than forty-eight (48) hours from the time the original meeting was called and no additional notice shall be required. If the meeting must be adjourned to a time more than forty-eight (48) hours from the time the original meeting was called, an additional notice shall be required in accordance with these Bylaws.

<u>Section 4.6. Order of Business</u>. The order of business at all annual or special meetings of the Association shall be as designated in the agenda for the meeting.

<u>Section 4.7. Quorum</u>. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the presence in person or by proxy of one-third (1/3) of the Owners shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Association. The votes of a majority of the Owners present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the Association.

Section 4.8. Conduct of Meetings. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Association and the Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept the minutes of the meeting and record or cause to be recorded in a minute book all resolutions adopted at the meeting as well as a record of all transactions occurring thereat. Unless modified by the Board by resolution, *Roberts Rules of Order* (current edition) shall govern the conduct of all meetings of the Association when not in conflict with the Declaration or these Bylaws.

Section 4.9. Availability of Records. The Association shall maintain current copies of the Declaration, the Certificate of Incorporation of the Association and any amendments thereto and restatements thereof (the "Certificate of Incorporation"), these Bylaws, the minutes of all members' and Board of Director's meetings and records of all action taken by members on the Board of Directors without a meeting for at least the past 3 years, a record of all actions taken by a committee of the Board of Directors, any financial statements and tax returns of the Association prepared for the past 3 years, a list of the names and business addresses of the Association's current members of the Board of Directors and officers, its most recent annual report delivered to the Delaware Secretary of State, such records needed to enable the Association to comply with 25 Del. C. §81-409, recorded of receipts and expenditures affecting

the operation and administration of the Association and other appropriate accounting records (including those for any repair and replacement reserve), and a list of the names and addresses of all Association members in alphabetical order by class showing the number of votes each member is entitled to cast and their class of membership if any. The Association shall hold all such documents available for inspection by Owners or by holders, insurers and guarantors of first mortgages that are secured by properties; provided that documents may be withheld from inspection and copying in accordance with 25 Del. C. §81-318(c). Documents shall be available for inspection during the normal business hours of and upon proper written request to the Association in accordance with the general corporate law of the State of Delaware. A reasonable fee for copying any documents or records made available to and inspected in accordance with this paragraph, not to exceed the actual cost of materials and labor incurred by the Association, may be imposed by the Board, in such amount as it deems appropriate from time to time. Any fee schedule imposed by the Board in accordance with this paragraph shall be become effective upon publication to the Owners in accordance with the notice requirements contained in these Bylaws.

<u>Section 4.10. Voting Rights</u>. Voting rights shall be those established in the Certificate of Incorporation, paragraph Fifteenth.

ARTICLE V Voting

Section 5.1. Voting. Voting at all meetings of the Association shall be on the basis of one (1) Unit, one (1) vote. If only one (1) of several Owners of a Unit is present at a meeting of the Association, that Owner is entitled to cast all the votes allocated to that Unit. If more than one (1) of the Owners of a Unit is present at a meeting of the Association, then the person who shall be entitled to enter the vote of such Unit shall be the person named in a certificate signed by all of the Owners of the Unit and filed with the Secretary. Such certificate shall be valid until revoked by a subsequent certificate. The vote of each Unit shall be exercised as the Owners of the Unit, among themselves determine, but in no event shall more than one (1) vote be cast with respect to any such Unit. In the event of multiple or disputed votes by and between the applicable Owners of a Unit, then such votes shall be ruled invalid and the Executive Board shall disregard any such multiple or disputed votes cast by the Owners of the Unit. Any such invalidated votes shall not, however, invalidate or otherwise alter the effectiveness of such Owners attendance at the meeting by proxy or otherwise for quorum purposes. Whenever the approval or disapproval of a Owner is required by DUCIOA, the Declaration or these Bylaws, such approval or disapproval shall only be made by the person who would be entitled to cast the vote for the Unit at any meeting of the Association. Except where a greater number is required by DUCIOA, the Declaration or these Bylaws, a majority of the votes cast in person, by proxy or by ballot at a meeting of Owners where a quorum is present shall determine the outcome of any action of the Association where a vote is taken so long as the number of votes cast in favor comprise at least a majority of the number of votes required for a quorum for that meeting. Votes allocated to a Unit owned by the Association may not be cast and shall not be calculated either in a quorum or in any percentage of votes needed for any action by the Owners.

<u>Section 5.2. Proxies</u>. A vote may be cast in person or by proxy. Proxies shall be valid only for the particular meeting designated therein and must be filed with the Secretary or the professional managing agent, if any, before the appointed time of the meeting.

Section 5.3. Majority of Owners. As used in these Bylaws, the term Amajority@ shall mean the vote of more than fifty percent (50%) of the Units then existing.

ARTICLE VI Board of Directors

Section 6.1. Number and Qualification. The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a Board of Directors (referred to as the "Executive Board" in DUCIOA). The Board shall be comprised of no fewer than three (3) and no more than five (5) members.

The Board shall initially be comprised of three (3) members, all appointed by the Developer, as follows: (1) Preston L. Dyer; (2) Gary McCrea; and (3) Mason T. Dyer. Such Developer appointees shall not be required to be Owners and may be, but shall not be required to be, residents of the State of Delaware.

As required by § 81-303 of DUCIOA, not later than sixty (60) days after conveyance of twenty-five percent (25%) of the total number of Units that may be created in SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM to Owners other than the Developer or a Participating Builder (as defined in the Declaration), at least one (1) member and not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the Board shall be elected by Owners other than the Developer or a Participating Builder and, unless such timing coincides with an annual meeting, the President shall call a special meeting for such election as provided in Article IV of these Bylaws. By way of example, after twentyfive percent (25%) of the total number of Units that may be created in SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM have been conveyed to Owners, the Board shall be expanded by the Developer to four (4) members, at least one (1) of whom shall be elected by Owners, in order to comply with the Act. Also as required by § 81-303 of DUCIOA, not later than sixty (60) days after conveyance of fifty percent (50%) of the total Units that may be created in SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM to Owners other than the Developer or a Participating Builder, not less than thirty-three and one-third percent (33-1/3%) of the Board shall be elected by Owners other than the Developer or a Participating Builder and, unless such timing coincides with an annual meeting, the President shall call a special meeting for such election as provided in Article IV of these Bylaws. By way of example, after fifty percent (50%) of the total number of Units that may be created in SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM have been conveyed to Owners, the Board shall be expanded by the Developer to five (5) members, at least two (2) of whom shall be elected by Owners, in order to comply with the Act. Upon the termination of the Developer Control Period, as defined and provided in the Declaration, the Owners shall elect the Board and the Board, by majority vote and provided the Developer did not already expand the Board as described above, may expand the Board to no more than five (5) members. The members of the Board elected by the Owners shall be Owners or spouses of Owners or, if the Owner is a corporation, limited liability company, partnership, trust or other entity, an officer, director, managing member or other authorized representative designated in writing by such entity.

- Section 6.2. Powers and Duties. The Board shall have all of the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association and may do all such acts and things as are established by the Declaration, Certificate of Incorporation and these Bylaws directed to be exercised and done by the Association except as otherwise provided herein. The Board shall have the power from time to time to adopt any rules and regulations deemed necessary for the enjoyment of SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM, provided such rules and regulations shall not be in conflict with the Declaration, Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws. The Board may delegate to one (1) of its members the authority to act on behalf of the Board on all matters relating to the duties of the professional managing agent, if any, which might arise between meetings of the Board. In addition to the duties imposed by the Declaration, Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws or by any resolution of the Association that may hereafter be adopted, the Board shall have the power to, and be responsible for, the following:
- (a) Preparation of an annual budget, in which there shall be established the contribution of each Owner to the common expenses, to be approved in accordance with § 81-324 of DUCIOA.
- (b) Making assessments against Owners to defray the costs and expenses of the Association, establishing the means and methods of collecting assessments as established in the Declaration from the Owners, and establishing the period of the installment payment of the annual assessment for common expenses. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, the annual assessment against each Owner for his proportionate share of the common expenses shall be payable in equal monthly, quarterly or annual installments, as determined by the Board, each such installment to be due and payable in advance on the date(s) established by the Board.
- € Providing for the operation, care, upkeep, replacement, maintenance and surveillance of all of Units, roads, and common areas; and services of the Association except as may otherwise be provided herein.
- Designating, hiring and dismissing the personnel or contractors necessary (d) for the maintenance, operation, repair and replacement of the common area and Units, and providing services for the property, and, where appropriate, providing for the compensation of such personnel and for the purchase of equipment, supplies and material to be used by such personnel in the performance of their duties, which supplies and equipment shall be deemed the common property of the Owners; and, moreover, contracting the professional managing agent, if deemed necessary by the Board. No contractual agreement may bind the Association unless such contractual agreement provides for the right of the Association to terminate the same without cause or penalty at any time after transfer of control of the Association from the Developer to the Owners, upon not less than ninety (90) days' notice. In addition, if entered into before a majority of the Board elected by the Owners (as opposed to appointed by the Developer) in accordance with these bylaws takes office: (1) any management contract, employment contract, (2) any other contract or lease between the Association and Developer or an affiliate of Developer, or (3) any contract or lease that is not bona fide or was unconscionable to the Owners at the time entered into under the circumstances then prevailing, may be terminated without penalty by the Association at any time after the Board elected by the Owners (as opposed to appointed by Declarant) in accordance with these Bylaws takes office upon not less than ninety (90) days notice to the other party.

- € Collecting the assessments against the Owners, depositing the proceeds thereof in a bank depository which it shall approve, and using the proceeds to carry out the administration of the property.
- (f) Making and amending rules and regulations respecting the use of the property so that such do not unduly restrict the use and enjoyment by the Owners, their tenants and guests.
- (g) Opening of bank accounts on behalf of the Board and designating the signatories required therefor.
- (h) Making, or contracting for the making of, repairs, additions, and improvements to, or alterations of, the property and repairs to, and restoration of, the property, in accordance with the other provisions of these Bylaws, after damage or destruction by fire or other casualty.
- (i) Enforcing by legal means, when deemed necessary and appropriate in the opinion of the Board, the provisions of the Declaration, Certificate of Incorporation, these Bylaws and the rules and regulations for the use of the property adopted by it and bringing any proceedings which may be instituted on behalf of the Owners.
- (j) Obtaining and carrying insurance against casualties and liabilities, and paying the premium cost thereof.
- (k) Paying the cost of all services rendered to the Association, and not billed to Owners.
- (l) Keeping books with detailed accounts in chronological order of the receipts and expenditures affecting the property and Association, and the administration of the property, specifying the maintenance and repair expenses of the roads and common areas, and any other expenses incurred. The said books shall be available for examination by the Owners, their duly authorized agents or attorneys, in accordance with and pursuant to the processes set forth in § 81-318 of DUCIOA. All books and records shall be kept in accordance with good and accepted accounting practices, and if so directed by the Board, the same may be audited by an outside auditor employed by the Board who shall not be a resident of SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM, or an Owner of a Unit therein. The cost of such audit shall be a common expense. An audited financial statement, if prepared, shall be available within one hundred twenty (120) days of the end of the fiscal year.
- (m) Notifying the Mortgagee of any property of any default by the Owner whenever requested in writing by such Mortgagee to send such notice.
 - (n) Maintaining written minutes of all meetings.
- (o) Resolving disputes between and among Owners and the Board and making decisions regarding disputes related to the interpretation and application of the Declaration, Certificate of Incorporation, these Bylaws and rules and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.

- (p) Borrowing in an amount not to exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the value of the Common Areas for any proper Association purpose by the execution of notes and mortgages or as security for the repayment thereof or such other security or securities as the Association shall designate for the payment of principal thereof and interest due thereon, subject to any restrictions or limitations which may be contained in the Declaration or DUCIOA.
- (q) To do such other things and acts not inconsistent with the Declaration or Certificate of Incorporation which it may be authorized to do by a resolution of the Association.
- Section 6.3. Election and Term of Office. During the Developer Control Period, all Board members shall serve for one (1) year terms. At the first meeting of the Association after the termination of the Developer Control Period during which an election is held, the terms of office of the members elected by the Unit Owners to serve on the Board shall be staggered. If three (3) members are elected, two (2) members shall serve two (2) year terms, and (1) member shall serve a one (1) year term. If four (4) members are elected, two (2) members shall serve two (2) years terms, and two (2) members shall serve one (1) year terms. If five (5) members are elected, three (3) members shall serve two (2) year terms and two (2) members shall serve one (1) year terms. At the expiration of the initial terms of office of the members of the Board elected at the first meeting of the Association after the termination of the Developer Control Period, their successors shall be elected to serve for two (2) year terms. The members of the Board shall hold office until their respective successors shall have been elected and the newly elected member=s willingness to serve confirmed.
- Section 6.4. Removal of Members of the Board. At any regular or special meeting of the Board duly called, any one (1) or more of the members of the Board may be removed with or without cause by a majority of the Board members, and a successor may then and there be appointed by a majority of the remaining Board members to fill the vacancy thus created. Any member of the Board whose removal, with or without cause, has been proposed by the Owners shall be given at least ten (10) days' notice of the calling of an Association meeting in response to said proposal and the purpose thereof and shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the meeting. In such a situation where the removal of a Board member, with or without cause, has been proposed by the Owners, a majority of the Owners present, in person or by proxy, at the meeting called for this purpose may remove the Board member in question and a successor may then and there be appointed by a majority of the Owners present to fill the vacancy thus created.
- Section 6.5. Vacancies. Vacancies in the Board caused by any reason other than the removal of a member by a vote of the Owners shall be filled by a vote of a majority of the remaining members of the Board at a special meeting of the Board held for that purpose promptly after the occurrence of any such vacancy, even though the Board members present at such meeting may constitute less than a quorum, and each person so elected shall be a member of the Board for the remainder of the term of the member so removed and until a successor shall be elected at the next annual meeting of the Association.
- Section 6.6. Organizational Meeting. The first meeting of the members of the Board following an annual meeting of the Association shall be held within ten (10) days thereafter at such time and place as shall be fixed by the Board so elected, and no notice shall be necessary to

the newly elected members of the Board in order legally to constitute such meeting, providing a majority of the whole Board shall be present thereat.

Section 6.7. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board (except for executive sessions held for a permitted purpose set forth in § 81-308A of DUCIOA) shall be open to all Owners after the Developer Control Period ends and shall be held at least quarterly at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of the Board members. Notice, including the agenda, of regular meetings of the Board shall be given to each Board member, by mail, email, telegraph, telefacsimile or telephone with mail confirmation, at least ten (10) but not more than sixty (60) days prior to the day named for such meeting. Except when a schedule of meetings has been distributed to the Owners that identifies the meeting in question or in cases of emergency meetings that may be held without prior notice, the Secretary shall cause notice of any regular meeting to be delivered to each Owner by any means described in Section 9.1. of these Bylaws at least ten (10) but not more than sixty (60) days prior to the meeting (but not later than the time notice of the meeting is sent to members of the Board).

Section 6.8. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board (except for executive sessions held for a permitted purpose set forth in § 81-308A of DUCIOA) shall be open to all Owners after the Developer Control Period ends and may be called by the President on at least ten (10) but not more than sixty (60) days' notice to each Board member, given by mail, email, telegraph, telefacsimile or telephone with mail confirmation, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting. Special meetings of the Board shall be called by the President or Secretary in like manner and on like notice on the written request of at least two (2) Board members. The Secretary shall cause notice of any special meeting to be delivered to each Owner by any means described in Section 9.1. of these Bylaws at least ten (10) but not more than sixty (60) days prior to the meeting (but not later than the time notice of the meeting is sent to members of the Board).

Section 6.9. Waiver of Notice. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained herein, any Board member may, at any time, in writing, waive notice of any meeting of the Board, and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a Board member at any meeting of the Board shall constitute a waiver of notice by him of the time and place of such meeting. If all Board members are present at any meeting of the Board, no notice shall be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting, including meetings conducted by telephone conference.

<u>Section 6.10. Quorum of Board</u>. At all meetings of the Board, a majority of the Board members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the votes of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the Board.

Section 6.11. Fidelity Bonds. The Board shall obtain adequate fidelity bonds for all officers, directors and employees of the Association handling or responsible for Association funds. The premiums on such bonds shall constitute a valid expense payable by the Association.

<u>Section 6.12. Compensation</u>. No Board member shall receive any compensation from the Association for acting as such, but may be reimbursed for necessary expenses incurred in regard to service as a Board member, as approved by the Board from time to time.

<u>Section 6.13. Conduct of Meetings</u>. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Board and the Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept a minute book of the Board recording therein all resolutions adopted by the Board and a record of all transactions and proceedings occurring at such meetings. Unless modified by the Board by resolution, *Roberts Rules of Order* (current edition) shall govern the conduct of all meetings of the Association when not in conflict with the Declaration or these Bylaws.

Section 6.14. Liability of the Members of the Board. The members of the Board shall not be liable to the Owners for any mistake of judgment, negligence, or otherwise except for their own individual willful misconduct or bad faith. The Owners shall indemnify and hold harmless each of the Board members from and against all contractual liability to others arising out of contracts made or action taken by the Board on behalf of the Owners unless any such contract or action shall have been made in bad faith or contrary to the provisions of the Declaration, Certificate of Incorporation or of these Bylaws. It is intended that the members of the Board shall have no personal liability with respect to any contract made or action taken by them on behalf of the Owners. Every agreement made or action taken by the Board on behalf of the Owners shall, if obtainable, provide that the members of the Board, as the case may be, are acting only as agents for the Owners and shall have no personal liability thereunder, and that each Owners= liability thereunder shall be limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder as his percentage interest bears to the total Units in SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM. The Owners shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he is or was a member of the Board, against expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement incurred by him in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Owners.

ARTICLE VII Officers

Section 7.1. Designation. The principal officers of the Association shall be the President, the Vice President, the Secretary and the Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by the Board. The Board may appoint an Assistant Treasurer, an Assistant Secretary, and such other officers as in its judgment may be necessary. The President shall be a member of the Board. Any other officers may be, but shall not be required to be, members of the Board. Any Board member who serves as an officer shall be permitted to hold more than one office if such is necessary to fill the principal positions of President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer.

Section 7.2. Election of Officers. The officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board at the organizational meeting of each new Board and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board. Any vacancy in an office shall be filled by the Board at a regular meeting or special meeting called for such purposes.

- <u>Section 7.3.</u> Removal of Officers. Upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, and his successor may be elected at any regular meeting of the Board, or at any special meeting of the Board called for such purpose.
- Section 7.4. President. The President shall be the chief executive of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the Association and of the Board. He shall have all of the general powers and duties which are incident to the office of the president of a stock corporation organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, including, but not limited to, the power to appoint committees from among the Owners from time to time as he may in his discretion decide is appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association. The President shall also be responsible for the preparation, execution, certification and recordation of any amendments to the Declaration, Certificate of Incorporation, these Bylaws or any other governing document for the Association.
- Section 7.5. Vice President. The Vice President shall take the place of the President and perform his duties whenever the President shall be absent or unable to act. If neither the President nor the Vice President is able to act, the Board shall appoint some other member of the Board to act in the place of the President, on an interim basis. The Vice President shall also perform such other duties as shall from time to time be imposed upon him by the Board or by the President.
- Section 7.6. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept the minutes of all meetings of the Association and of the Board; he shall have charge of such books and papers as the Board may direct; he shall provide or cause to be provided notice of all scheduled Association meetings to each Owner at such address as each Owner shall have designated by notice in writing to the Secretary; and he shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary of a stock corporation organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.
- Section 7.7. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the responsibility for Association funds and securities and shall be responsible for keeping full and accurate financial records and books of account showing all receipts and disbursements, and for the preparation of all required financial data; he shall be responsible for the deposit of all monies and other valuable effects in the name of the Board, or the managing agent, in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Board, and he shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer of a stock corporation organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.
- Section 7.8. Agreements, Contracts, Deeds, Checks, etc. All agreements, contracts, deeds, leases, checks and other instruments of the Association for expenditures or obligations of over \$1,000.00 shall be executed by any two (2) officers or by an officer and such other person or persons as may be designated by the Board. All such instruments for expenditures or obligations of less than \$1,000.00 may be executed by any one (1) officer or by such other person as may be designated by the Board.

<u>Section 7.9. Compensation of Officers</u>. No officer shall receive any compensation from the Association for acting as such, but may be reimbursed for expenses incurred in regard to services rendered to the Association, as approved by the Board from time to time.

ARTICLE VIII Amendments to Bylaws

Section 8.1. Amendments. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, these Bylaws may be modified or amended either (i) by a vote of at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the membership present, in person or by proxy, at any regular or special meeting, provided that notice of the proposed amendment shall have been given to each Owner at least ten (10) days in advance of such meeting or (ii) pursuant to a written instrument duly executed by a majority of all of the Owners.

ARTICLE IX Miscellaneous

Section 9.1. Notices. All notices, demands, bills, statements or other communications under the Declaration or the corporate governing documents for the Association, including these Bylaws, shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if: (a) delivered personally; (b) if to an Owner, if sent by email, facsimile or other method of electronic transmission to the Owner at the email/electronic address or facsimile number which the Owner shall designate in writing and file with the Secretary; (c) if to an Owner, if sent by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to an Owner at the address which the Owner shall designate in writing and file with the Secretary or, if no such address is designated, at the address of the Owner as provided in the tax assessment records for Sussex County; (d) if to the Association, if sent by email, facsimile or other method of electronic transmission to the Association at the email/electronic address or facsimile number which the Association shall designate in writing to the Owners as the principal email/electronic address or facsimile number of the Association, the Board or the professional managing agent, if any, at the principal office of the Association or at such other address as shall be designated by notice in writing to the Owners pursuant to this section.

Section 9.2. Gender, Number. The use of the masculine gender in these Bylaws shall be deemed to include the feminine gender and the use of the singular shall be deemed to include the plural, whenever the context so requires.

<u>Section 9.3. Definitions</u>. Words and phrases which are used herein and which are defined and/or discussed in the Declaration and Certificate of Incorporation shall have the meaning as set forth in the Declaration and Certificate of Incorporation.

<u>Section 9.4. Conflicts</u>. In the event of any conflicts between the Declaration and these Bylaws, the Declaration shall be controlling.

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the original members of the Board of Directors for the Association have hereunto set their hands and seals the day of March, 2018.

Secure Stolle		Preston J. Dyer	(SEAL)
Witness	T	Gary McCrea	_(~2.12)
		/	(SEAL)
Witness		Mason T. Dyer	
		(4) A2	
STATE OF DELAWARE	:		
		SS.	
COUNTY OF DUCSEL			

BE IT REMEMBERED, That on this _______ day of March, 2018, personally came before me, The Subscriber, a Notary Public for the State and County aforesaid, Preston L. Dyer, original member of the Board of Directors of the SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, Inc., a Delaware corporation, party to this Indenture, known to me personally to be such, and acknowledged this Indenture to be his act and Deed, and the act and the Deed of the said corporation; that the signature is in his own proper handwriting; and that the act of signing, sealing, acknowledging and delivering the said Indenture was first duly authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors of the corporation.

GIVEN under my Hand and Seal of Office, the day and year aforesaid.

Commission Expires:

Type or Print Name of Notary.

DENISE S. HOLLEGER

Notary Public

State of Delaware

ly Commission Expires On July 25, 2020

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the original members of the Board of Directors for the Association have hereunto set their hands and seals the 22 day of March, 2018.
AMa/

	6/1/4/		
Witness	Preston L. Dyer (SEAL)		
Witness Witness	Gary McCrea (SEAL) Mason T. Dyer		
STATE OF DELAWARE :	00		
COUNTY OF	SS.		
BE IT REMEMBERED, That on this day of March, 2018, personally came before me, The Subscriber, a Notary Public for the State and County aforesaid, Preston L. Dyer, original member of the Board of Directors of the SEASHORE VILLAS COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, Inc., a Delaware corporation, party to this Indenture, known to me personally to be such, and acknowledged this Indenture to be his act and Deed, and the act and the Deed of the said corporation; that the signature is in his own proper handwriting; and that the act of signing, sealing, acknowledging and delivering the said Indenture was first duly authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors of the corporation.			
GIVEN under my Hand and Seal of	Office, the day and year aforesaid.		
	NOTABY BURY IC		
	NOTARY PUBLIC		
	Commission Expires: Type or Print Name of Notary:		
	Type of Time Island of Isolary.		

STATE OF DELAWARE :			
: SS.			
COUNTY OF Sussex:			
BE IT REMEMBERED, That on this day of March, 2018, personally came before me, The Subscriber, a Notary Public for the State and County aforesaid, Gary McCrea, original member of the Board of Directors of the SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, Inc., a Delaware corporation, party to this Indenture, known to me personally to be such, and acknowledged this Indenture to be his act and Deed, and the act and the Deed of the said corporation; that the signature is in his own proper handwriting; and that the act of signing, sealing, acknowledging and delivering the said Indenture was first duly authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors of the corporation.			
GIVEN under my Hand and Seal of Office, the day and year aforesaid.			
NOTARY PUBLIC			
Commission Expires:			
Type or Print Name of Notary: DENISE S. HOLLEGER Notary Public State of Delaware My Commission Expires On July 25, 2020			
STATE OF DELAWARE :			
COUNTY OF <u>Sussy</u> : ss.			
BE IT REMEMBERED, That on this day of March, 2018, personally came before me, The Subscriber, a Notary Public for the State and County aforesaid, Mason T. Dyer, original member of the Board of Directors of the SEASHORE VILLAS CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, Inc., a Delaware corporation, party to this Indenture, known to me personally to be such, and acknowledged this Indenture to be his act and Deed, and the act and the Deed of the said corporation; that the signature is in his own proper handwriting; and that the act of signing, sealing, acknowledging and delivering the said Indenture was first duly authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors of the corporation.			
GIVEN under my Hand and Seal of Office, the day and year aforesaid.			
NOTARY PUBLIC			
Commission Expires:			
Type or Print Name of Notary: DENISE S. HOLLEGER Notary Public State of Delaware My Commission Expires On			